
The complete SolTrans Board Meeting Packet is available on STA’s Website at www.sta.ca.gov  
 

 

S o l T r a n s  
 

SOLANO COUNTY TRANSIT 
BOARD MEETING AGENDA  

 
3:30 p.m., Closed Session 

4:00 p.m., Regular Meeting  
Thursday, May 19, 2011 

Benicia Council Chambers 
 

 
Public Comment:  Pursuant to the Brown Act, the public has an opportunity to speak on any matter on the agenda or, for 
matters not on the agenda, issues within the subject matter jurisdiction of the agency.  Comments are limited to no more than 
3 minutes per speaker unless modified by the Board Chair, Gov’t Code § 54954.3(a).  By law, no action may be taken on any 
item raised during the public comment period (Agenda Item  IV) although informational answers to questions may be given 
and matters may be referred to staff  for placement on a future agenda of the agency.   
 
Americans with Disabilities Act (ADA):  This agenda is available upon request in alternative formats to persons with a 
disability, as required by the ADA of 1990 (42 U.S.C. §12132) and the Ralph M. Brown Act (Cal. Govt. Code §54954.2).  
Persons requesting a disability related modification or accommodation should contact Johanna Masiclat, Clerk of the Board, 
at (707) 424-6008 during regular business hours at least 24 hours prior to the time of the meeting. 
 

Staff Reports:  Staff reports are available for inspection at the STA Offices, One Harbor Center, Suite 130, Suisun City 
during regular business hours, 8:00 a.m. to 5:00 p.m., Monday-Friday.  You may also contact the Clerk of the Board via 
email at jmasiclat@sta-snci.com.  Supplemental Reports:  Any reports or other materials that are issued after the agenda has 
been distributed may be reviewed by contacting the STA Clerk of the Board and copies of any such supplemental materials 
will be available on the table at the entry to the meeting room. 
 

Agenda Times:  Times set forth on the agenda are estimates.  Items may be heard before or after the times shown. 
 
 
 

ITEM BOARD/STAFF PERSON 

I. CLOSED SESSION: 
PERSONNEL MATTERS (Pursuant to CA Gov’t Code §549547) 
Public Employee Appointment: Interim Executive Director 
(3:30 – 4:00 p.m.) 
 

 

II CALL TO ORDER/PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE                                  Osby Davis, Mayor 
(4:00 – 4:05 p.m.)                                                                                                  City of Vallejo 
 

III. CONFIRM QUORUM/ STATEMENT OF CONFLICT                           Johanna Masiclat 
Clerk of the Board for the STA 

An official who has a conflict must, prior to consideration of the decision; (1) publicly identify in detail the 
financial interest that causes the conflict; (2) recuse himself/herself from discussing and voting on the matter; (3) 
leave the room until after the decision has been made. Cal. Gov’t Code § 87200. 

 
 

SOLTRANS BOARD MEMBERS 
 

Elizabeth Patterson Mike Ioakimedes Osby Davis Erin Hannigan Jim Spering Harry Price 
      

City of Benicia City of Benicia City of Vallejo City of Vallejo MTC Representative STA Ex-Officio 
      

Alternate Board Member 
Mark Hughes 

 

Alternate Board Member 
Stephanie Gomes 

 

  
  
  

      

 

http://www.sta.ca.gov/
mailto:jmasiclat@sta-snci.com


The complete SolTrans Board Meeting Packet is available on STA’s Website at www.sta.ca.gov  
 

IV. APPROVAL OF AGENDA 
 

V. OPPORTUNITY FOR PUBLIC COMMENT 
(4:05 – 4:10 p.m.) 

 
VI. COMMENTS FROM STAFF 

(4:15 – 4:20 p.m.) 
 

 A. Vallejo Transit Center Status David Kleinschmidt 

 B. Consultant Introductions: 
• Moore & Associates -  Short Range Transit Plan 

(SRTP) 
• Page Design Group – Marketing and Branding 

Contract 
 

John Harris, 
Transition Team 
Project Manager 

VII. CONSENT CALENDAR 
Recommendation: 
Approve the following consent items in one motion. 
(Note: Items under consent calendar may be removed for separate discussion.) 
(4:20 - 4:25 p.m.) 

 
 A. Meeting Minutes of April 21, 2011 

Recommendation: 
Approve the meeting minutes of April 21, 2011. 
Pg. 1 
 

Johanna Masiclat, 
STA 

 B. Transportation Development Act (TDA), State Transit 
Assistance Funds (STAF) and Regional Measure 2 (RM2) 
Claims 
Recommendation: 
Adopt the following: 

1. Resolution No. 2011-03 for SolTrans FY 2011-12 
allocation request for TDA funds and STAF; and 

2. Resolution No. 2011-04 for SolTrans FY 2011-12 
allocation request for RM2 funds for operating.  

Pg. 5 
 

Nancy Whelan, 
Finance Consultant 

VIII. ACTION ITEMS – ADMINISTRATIVE/FINANCE 
 

 A. Updated Proposed SolTrans Staff Benefits and  Salary 
Recommendations  
Recommendation: 
Pending Subcommittee review and forthcoming recommendation. 
(4:25 – 4:40 p.m.) 
Pg. 13
 

Joy Apilado, 
HR Consultant 

http://www.sta.ca.gov/


The complete SolTrans Board Meeting Packet is available on STA’s Website at www.sta.ca.gov  
 

 B. Interim Executive Director for Solano County Transit JPA  
Recommendation: 
Request the STA to enter into a contract with Jim McElroy to serve 
as the Interim Executive Director for SolTrans as defined by the 
Scope of Services shown in Attachment B. 
(4:40 – 4:45 p.m.) 
Pg. 15
 

Daryl K. Halls, 
STA 

 C. FTA Compliance Requirements and Status 
Recommendation: 
Approve the following 

1. Adopt the SolTrans DBE policy and program as set forth in 
Attachment A; 

2. Authorize publication of the overall Disadvantaged Business 
Enterprise goals for FY 2011 as set forth in Attachment A; 

3. Adopt the SolTrans Public Participation Policy for Fare and 
Service Changes as set forth in Attachment B; and 

4. Adopt the SolTrans Drug Free Workplace Policy as set forth 
in Attachment C. 

(4:45 – 4:55 p.m.) 
Pg.  21
 

Nancy Whelan, 
Finance Consultant 

Bernadette Curry, 
Legal Counsel 

 D. FY 2011-12 SolTrans Operating Budget  
Recommendation: 
Approve the FY 2012 SolTrans annual operating budget in the 
amount of $13,000,015, as specified in Attachment A.  
(4:55 – 5:05 p.m.) 
Pg.  49
 

Nancy Whelan, 
Finance Consultant 

IX. ACTION ITEMS – PLANNING AND OPERATIONS 
 

 A. Approve Recommendation for Approval of Contract between 
Cities of Benicia and Vallejo and MV Transportation 
Recommendation: 
Authorize SolTrans Legal Counsel to send a recommendation of 
support to the City Councils of Benicia and Vallejo for the approval 
of a new operating agreement between the cities of Benicia and 
Vallejo and MV Transportation to.  
(5:05 – 5:15 p.m.) 
Pg.  55

Bernadette Curry, 
Legal Counsel 

  X.   INFORMATIONAL  

 A. None presented. 
 

 

XI. BOARD MEMBERS COMMENTS 
 

XII. ADJOURNMENT 
The next regular meeting of the SolTrans Board is tentatively scheduled for Thursday,  
June 16, 2011, 4:00 p.m., Vallejo Council Chambers. 
 

 

http://www.sta.ca.gov/


This page intentionally left blank. 



Agenda Item VII.A 
May 19, 2011 

S o l T r a n s  
 

SOLANO COUNTY TRANSIT (SOLTRANS) 
Draft Board Minutes for Meeting of 

April 21, 2011 
 

I. CALL TO ORDER 
 
Chair Davis called the meeting of the SolTrans Board to order at 4:30 p.m.  A quorum was 
confirmed. 
 

 MEMBER
S 
PRESENT
: 

 
Elizabeth Patterson, Mayor 
(Arrived at 5:00 p.m.) 

 
City of Benicia, Vice Chair 

  Mike Ioakimedes, Councilmember City of Benicia 
  Osby Davis, Mayor City of Vallejo, Chair 
  Stephanie Gomes, Councilmember 

(Alternate Board Members) 
City of Vallejo 

  Jim Spering, Supervisor, 
County of Solano  

MTC Representative 

    
 MEMBER

S 
ABSENT: 

 
Erin Hannigan, Councilmember 

 
City of Vallejo 

  Harry Price, Mayor, 
City of Fairfield 

Ex-Officio – STA Representative 

    
 STAFF  

PRESENT
: 

 
In Alphabetical Order by Last Name: 

  Joy Apilado STA HR Consultant 
  Bernadette Curry  SolTrans Legal Counsel 
  Daryl Halls STA Executive Director 
  John Harris STA Project Manager - Consultant 
  Gary Leach Public Works Director, City of Vallejo 
  Johanna Masiclat STA Clerk of the Board 
  Liz Niedziela STA Transit Program Manager 
  Elizabeth Richards STA Director of Transit and Rideshare 

Services 
  Nancy Whelan STA Transit Finance Consultant 
    
 OTHERS 

PRESENT
: 

 
In Alphabetical Order by Last Name: 

  Richard Burnett MTC Advisory Council 
  JB Davis Patch.com 
  Denis Jackson MV Transit 
    
    
    

1



II. CONFIRM QUORUM/STATEMENT OF CONFLICT 
A quorum was confirmed by the Clerk of the Board.  There was no Statement of Conflict declared 
at this time. 
 

III. 
 

APPROVAL OF AGENDA 
On a motion by Board Member Spering, and a second by Board Member Ioakimedes, the 
SolTrans Board approved the agenda. 
 

IV. 
 

OPPORTUNITY FOR PUBLIC COMMENT 
None presented. 
 

V. COMMENTS FROM STAFF: 
Daryl Halls mentioned that the Monthly Transitional Report for April written by Transition 
Project Manager, John Harris, has been provided to the Board in their Board folders. 
 

VI. CONSENT CALENDAR 
On a motion by Alternate Board Member Gomes, and a second by Board Member Spering, the 
SolTrans JPA Board approved Consent Calendar Item A and C with the exception to pull for 
discussion Item B, Adoption of SolTrans Budget Policy. 
 

 A. Meeting Minutes of March 24, 2011 
Recommendation: 
Approve the meeting minutes of March 24, 2011. 
 

VII. ACTION ITEMS – ADMINISTRATIVE/FINANCE 
 

 A. FTA Compliance Requirements:  DBE Policy and Goals and Adoption of SolTrans 
Bylaws 
Nancy Whelan reviewed the process of securing federal grantee status with the Federal 
Transit Administration (FTA) to access the funds of federal operating and capital grants.  
She outlined the policies and programs needed in the near term to help secure SolTrans 
grantee status in the Transition Plan.  She cited that staff is in discussions with FTA on 
establishing SolTrans as a grantee and expect to have approval to access the on-line grant 
making system no later than July 1, 2011. 
 
Nancy Whelan indicated that staff plans to bring required policies for SolTrans Board review 
and approval over the next two months.  She cited that the DBE goal setting process and 
DBE goal recommended for contract to be awarded from October 1, 2011 – September 30, 
2012 will be presented at the May SolTrans Board meeting.  She added that the DBE goals 
must be submitted to FTA no later than August 1, 2011. 
 
Bernadette Curry reviewed the comments that have been incorporated to the bylaws.  She 
indicated that staff is recommending that the Board adopt the bylaws and establish a Bylaws 
Standing Committee to work with staff to review and revise the bylaws as necessary.  She 
added that there is no limit to how often bylaws can be amended once adopted. 
 

2



  Public Comments: 
None presented. 
 

  Board Comments: 
After discussion, the SolTrans Board approved the following modifications to the Bylaws: 

• Add a policy regarding “Report Back Requirement to the Cities” 
• Add to Article V. Public Participation 

2.  Time Limit 
As a general policy, each speaker shall be limited to a three (3) minute 
comment, unless the agenda notes a different time limit for an item or 
additional time granted by the Chair. 

 
  Recommendation: 

Approve the SolTrans Bylaws and establish a Bylaws Standing Committee. 
 

  On a motion by Board Member Spering, and a second by Alternate Board Member Gomes, 
the SolTrans Board approved the recommendation to include the modifications listed above 
in bold italics. 
 

 A. Proposed SolTrans Staff Benefits and Salary Recommendations 
Joy Apilado reviewed the development of the SolTrans staff benefits and salary 
recommendations.  She cited that in order to attract and retain qualified employees, the 
subcommittee considered the budget constraints and recognized the need for flexibility to 
make additional changes in the future.  She also outlined the proposed salary schedule which 
includes a range that allows for merit increases based on actual performance rather than 
merit steps.  She added that this will require development of personnel policies within the 
agency to ensure fair and equitable methods for evaluation.  She also reviewed the benefits 
proposal that include a comprehensive package for all employees while allowing the agency 
the flexibility to develop criteria and parameters when contracting for the level of benefits. 
 

  Public Comments: 
None presented. 
 

  Board Comments: 
At the Board’s previous direction, a retirement plan under CalPERS with a 2% at 60 formula 
was included.  Board Alternate Member Stephanie Gomes questioned the viability of going 
with CalPERS at all and an extensive discussion was held amongst the Board members 
regarding the pros and cons of retirement options and alternatives.  
 
Based on the discussion, the Board approved to refer the item back to the SolTrans 
Recruitment Subcommittee for further review and a recommendation to be provided back to 
the Board.  
 
 
 

3



VIII. ACTION ITEMS – PLANNING AND OPERATIONS 
 

 A. None presented. 
 

IX. INFORMATIONAL ITEMS  
 

 A. Draft FY 2012 Budget 
Nancy Whelan noted that the Transition Team is preparing for the transition of financials 
from the two cities to the SolTrans JPA effective July 1, 2011.  She indicated the Fiscal Year 
(FY) 2012 budget process begins with a review of FY 2010 audited actual and FY 2011 
estimated actual and development of budget assumption.  She identified the key assumptions 
guiding the FY 2012 budget development.  She outlined the process and procedures for 
development of the budget. 
 

X. BOARD MEMBER COMMENTS 
 

XI. ADJOURNMENT  
 

 The meeting was adjourned at 6:40 p.m.  The next regular meeting of the SolTrans Board is 
scheduled for Thursday, May 19, 2011, 4:00 p.m., Benicia Council Chambers. 
 

 Attested by: 
 
 
 
                                                      5/17/2011 
Johanna Masiclat                          Date 
Clerk of the Board 
 

 

4



Agenda Item VII.B 
May 19, 2011 

 
Solano County Transit 

(SolTrans) 
 
DATE:  May 5, 2011 
TO:  SolTrans Board 
FROM: Nancy Whelan, Transition Team Consultant  
RE: Transportation Development Act (TDA), State Transit Assistance Funds (STAF) 

and Regional Measure 2 (RM2) Claims 
 
 
Background: 
The Metropolitan Transportation Commission (MTC) administers and allocates the 
Transportation Development Act (TDA); State Transit Assistance Funds (STAF) and Regional 
Measure 2 (RM2) that provide operating and capital assistance for transit operations in the Bay 
Area. 
 
TDA funds are one quarter percent local sales tax and collected by the State and allocated by 
MTC for transit operations and programs.  STAF provides funding for transit operations and 
capital projects.  STAF funds were eliminated in fiscal year 2009-10.  The STAF has been 
restored in Assembly Bill 6 and Assembly Bill 9 budget package signed by the Governor in 
March 2010.  
 
RM2 passed by voter on March 2, 2004 increased the toll on the seven state-owned toll bridges 
in the San Francisco Bay Area by $1.00.  This extra dollar is to fund various transportation 
projects within region that have been determined to reduce congestion or to make improvements 
to travel in the toll bridge corridors. Specifically, RM2 established the Regional Traffic Plan, in 
addition to capital investments.  
 
The Regional Traffic Relief Plan dedicates up to 38% of total annual RM2 funds to providing 
operating funds for commuter rail, express and enhanced bus and ferry service.  In Solano 
County, these funds have been used by Vallejo Transit for Routes 78, 80, and 90 and by Fairfield 
and Suisun Transit (FAST) for Routes 40 and 90.  The allocation of these RM 2 funds for 
SolanoExpress Intercity Service is determined by the STA. 
 
Discussion: 
This claim will be SolTrans’ first allocation request for operating assistance.  The claim 
combines City of Benicia and City of Vallejo programmed allocation in the claim as summarized 
below. 
 

Transportation Development Act (TDA) -  $6,599,956 
State Transit Assistance Funds (STAF) -   $   609,616 
Regional Measure 2 (RM2) -     $1,223,840 
Total      $8,433,412 

 
Recommendation:  
Adopt the following: 

1. Resolution No. 2011-03 for SolTrans FY 2011-12 allocation request for TDA funds and 
STAF; and 

2. Resolution No. 2011-04 for SolTrans FY 2011-12 allocation request for RM2 funds for 
operating. 

5



 
Attachments: 

A. Resolution No. 2011-03 for TDA 
B. Resolution No. 2011-04 for RM2 

6



ATTACHMENT A 
 

RESOLUTION NO. 2011-03 
 

RESOLUTION OF THE SOLANO COUNTY TRANSIT AUTHORIZING THE FILING OF A 
CLAIM WITH THE METROPOLITAN TRANSPORTATION COMMISSION FOR 
ALLOCATION OF TRANSPORTATION DEVELOPMENT ACT FOR FY 2011-12 

 
WHEREAS, the Transportation Development Act (TDA), (Pub. Util. Code Section 99200 et seq.), 
provides for the disbursement of funds from the Local Transportation Fund of the County of Solano for 
use by eligible claimants for the purpose of transit operations, planning, and administration; and  
 
WHEREAS, pursuant to the provisions of the TDA, and pursuant to the applicable rules and regulations 
there under (21 Cal. Admin. Code Section 6600 et seq.), a prospective claimant wishing to receive an 
allocation from the Local Transportation Fund shall file its claim with the Metropolitan Transportation 
Commission; and 
 
WHEREAS, TDA funds from the Local Transportation Fund of Solano County will be required by 
claimant in Fiscal Year 2011-12 for the purposes of planning and administrative services; and  
 
WHEREAS, the Solano County Transit is an eligible claimant for TDA pursuant to Public Utilities Code 
Sections 99400, 99402, and 99313 as attested by the opinion of Solano County Transit Counsel. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the Solano Transportation Authority Daryl K. Halls or 
his designee is authorized to execute and file an appropriated TDA claim together with all necessary 
supporting documents, with the Metropolitan Transportation Commission for an allocation of TDA 
monies in Fiscal Year 2011-12. 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that a copy of this resolution be transmitted to the Metropolitan 
Transportation Commission in conjunction with the filing of the claim; and the Metropolitan 
Transportation Commission be requested to grant the allocation of funds as specified herein.  
 
 
  
 Osby Davis, Chair 
 Solano County Transit 
 
Passed by the Solano County Transit (SolTrans) Board on this 19th day of May 2011 by the 
following vote: 
 
Ayes: ________ 
Nos: ________ 
Absent: ________ 
Abstain: ________ 
 
Attest: ______________________ 
 Johanna Masiclat 

Clerk of the Board 
 

7



This page intentionally left blank. 

8



ATTACHMENT B 
 

 
RESOLUTION NO. 2011-04 

 
RESOLUTION OF THE SOLANO COUNTY TRANSIT AUTHORIZING THE FILING OF 

A CLAIM WITH THE METROPOLITAN TRANSPORTATION COMMISSION FOR 
ALLOCATION OF REGIONAL MEASURE 2 FUNDS FOR FY 2011-12                         

FOR ROUTE 78, 80, AND 85. 

 
 

 WHEREAS, SB 916 (Chapter 715, Statutes 2004), commonly referred as Regional 
Measure 2, identified projects eligible to receive funding under the Regional Traffic Relief 
Plan; and  
 
 WHEREAS, the Metropolitan Transportation Commission (MTC) is responsible for 
funding projects eligible for Regional Measure 2 funds, pursuant to Streets and Highways 
Code Section 30914(c) and (d); and 
 
 WHEREAS, MTC has established a process whereby eligible transportation project 
sponsors may submit allocation requests for Regional Measure 2 funding; and 
 
 WHEREAS, allocations to MTC must be submitted consistent with procedures and 
conditions as outlined in Regional Measure 2 Policy and Procedures; and 
 
 WHEREAS, SolTrans is an eligible sponsor of transportation project(s) in Regional 
Measure 2, Regional Traffic Relief Plan funds; and 
 
 WHEREAS, Route 78, 80 and 85 are eligible for consideration in the Regional 
Traffic Relief Plan of Regional Measure 2, as identified in California Streets and Highways 
Code Section 30914(c) or (d); and 

 
 WHEREAS, the Regional Measure 2 allocation request, attached hereto in the 
Operating Assistance Proposal and incorporated herein as though set forth at length, 
demonstrates a fully funded operating plan that is consistent with the adopted performance 
measures, as applicable, for which SolTrans is requesting that MTC allocate Regional 
Measure 2 funds; and 
 
 WHEREAS, Part 2 of the project application, attached hereto and incorporated herein 
as though set forth at length, includes the certification by SolTrans of assurances required for 
the allocation of funds by MTC; now, therefore, be it 
 
 RESOLVED, that SolTrans and its agents shall comply with the provisions of the 
Metropolitan Transportation Commission’s Regional Measure 2 Policy Guidance (MTC 
Resolution No. 3636); and be it further 
 
 RESOLVED, that SolTrans certifies that the project is consistent with the Regional 
Transportation Plan (RTP).  
 

9



 RESOLVED, that SolTrans approves the updated Operating Assistance Proposal, 
attached to this resolution; and be it further 
 
 RESOLVED, that SolTrans approves the certification of assurances, attached to this 
resolution; and be it further 
 
 RESOLVED, that SolTrans is an eligible sponsor of projects in the Regional Measure 
2 Regional Traffic Relief Plan, Capital Program, in accordance with California Streets and 
Highways Code 30914(d); and be it further 
 
 RESOLVED, that SolTrans is authorized to submit an application for Regional 
Measure 2 funds for Route 78, 80 and 85 in accordance with California Streets and Highways 
Code 30914(d); and be it further 
 
 RESOLVED, that SolTrans certifies that the projects and purposes for which RM2 
funds are being requested are in compliance with the requirements of the California 
Environmental Quality Act (Public Resources Code Section 2l000 et seq.), and with the State 
Environmental Impact Report Guidelines (l4 California Code of Regulations Section l5000 et 
seq.) and, if relevant the National Environmental Policy Act (NEPA), 42 USC Section 4-1 et. 
seq. and the applicable regulations thereunder; and be it further 
 
 RESOLVED, that there is no legal impediment to SolTrans making allocation 
requests for Regional Measure 2 funds; and be it further 
 
 RESOLVED, that there is no pending or threatened litigation which might in any way 
adversely affect the proposed project, or the ability of SolTrans to deliver such project; and be 
it further 
 
 RESOLVED, that SolTrans indemnifies and holds harmless MTC, its 
Commissioners, representatives, agents, and employees from and against all claims, injury, 
suits, demands, liability, losses, damages, and expenses, whether direct or indirect (including 
any and all costs and expenses in connection therewith), incurred by reason of any act or 
failure to act of SolTrans, its officers, employees or agents, or subcontractors or any of them 
in connection with its performance of services under this allocation of RM2 funds. In addition 
to any other remedy authorized by law, so much of the funding due under this allocation of 
RM2 funds as shall reasonably be considered necessary by MTC may be retained until 
disposition has been made of any claim for damages. 
 
 RESOLVED, that SolTrans shall, if any revenues or profits from any non-
governmental use of property (or project) that those revenues or profits shall be used 
exclusively for the public transportation services for which the project was initially approved, 
either for capital improvements or maintenance and operational costs, otherwise the 
Metropolitan Transportation Commission is entitled to a proportionate share equal to MTC’s 
percentage participation in the projects(s); and be it further 
 
 RESOLVED, that SolTrans authorizes (Daryl K. Halls, or his/her designee) to 
execute and submit an allocation request for operating or planning costs for Fiscal Year 2011-
12 with MTC for Regional Measure 2 funds in the amount of $1,223,840 for the project, 
purposes and amounts included in the project application attached to this resolution; and be it 
further 
 

10



 RESOLVED, that (Daryl K. Halls, or his/her designee) is hereby delegated the 
authority to make non-substantive changes or minor amendments to the IPR as he/she deems 
appropriate.  
 
 RESOLVED, that a copy of this resolution shall be transmitted to MTC in 
conjunction with the filing of the SolTrans application referenced herein. 

 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that a copy of this resolution be transmitted to the 
Metropolitan Transportation Commission in conjunction with the filing of the claim; and the 
Metropolitan Transportation Commission be requested to grant the allocation of funds as 
specified herein.  
 
 
  
 Osby Davis, Chair 
 Solano County Transit 
 
Passed by the Solano County Transit (SolTrans) Board on this 19th day of May 2011 by the 
following vote: 
 
Ayes: ________ 
Nos: ________ 
Absent: ________ 
Abstain: ________ 
 
Attest: ______________________ 
 Johanna Masiclat 

Clerk of the Board 
 

11



This page intentionally left blank. 

12



Agenda Item VIII.A 
May 19, 2011 

 
 

Solano County Transit 
(SolTrans) 

 
DATE:  May 17, 2011 
TO:  SolTrans JPA Board 
FROM: Human Resources Subcommittee 
  Mike Ioakimedes, Councilmember, City of Benicia 
  Erin Hannigan, Councilmember, City of Vallejo 
  Daryl Halls, STA Executive Director 
  John Harris, Project Manager 

Joy Apilado, Human Resources Consultant 
RE:  Updated Proposed SolTrans Staff Benefits and Salary Recommendations 
 
 
Discussion: 
The attached exhibits are the SolTrans Board’s subcommittee proposals and recommendations 
for SolTrans staff.  It includes an organizational chart, salary schedule and benefits for all 
SolTrans employees.  These recommendations were developed using comparative agencies and 
in some cases incorporating existing levels of salary and benefits that are offered within the cities 
of Benicia and Vallejo.  In order to attract and retain qualified employees, the subcommittee 
considered the budget constraints and recognized the need for flexibility to make additional 
changes in the future.   
 
The proposed salary schedule includes a range that allows for merit increases based on actual 
performance rather than merit steps.  This will require development of personnel polices within 
the agency to ensure fair and equitable methods for evaluations.  The benefits proposals under 
exhibit C include a comprehensive package for all employees while allowing the agency the 
flexibility to develop criteria and parameters when contracting for the level of benefits.  A 
follow-up meeting of the Board Subcommittee, per the direction of the SolTrans Board, to 
review the options and forward a recommendation to the Board. 
 
Fiscal Impact: 
Final cost to be determined upon receiving actuarials and bids from contracting agencies and 
providers.     
 
Recommendation: 
Pending Subcommittee review and forthcoming recommendation. 
 
Attachments: 

A. SolTrans Organizational Chart 
B. SolTrans Salary Schedule 2011-12 
C. SolTrans Benefits Comparison and Recommendations 
D. Pending     

13



This page intentionally left blank. 

14



Agenda Item VIII.B 
May 19, 2011 

 
 

Solano County Transit 
(SolTrans) 

 
DATE:  May 12, 2011 
TO:  SolTrans Board 
FROM: Daryl Halls, STA Executive Director 
RE: Interim Executive Director for Solano County Transit JPA 
 
 
Background: 
The Solano County Transit (SolTrans) JPA was formed in 2010 and the Board has been 
meeting since December 2010.  Consolidation of the existing Benicia Breeze and Vallejo 
Transit services, currently operated by the Cities of Benicia and Vallejo respectively, is 
progressing with July 1, 2011 as the target date.  This is despite challenges that include 
minimal staff to administer these services.   
 
To provide staffing and leadership to the new organization, in 2010 the STA and 
SolTrans Boards approved hiring an Interim Executive Director.  An individual was 
retained in the summer of 2010, but by the end of the year became unavailable due to 
competing projects. In anticipation of quickly hiring a permanent Executive Director, the 
SolTrans Board directed the Transition Team to lead the start-up of the new agency in the 
interim.   Deciding upon a compensation package to begin the recruitment process for an 
Executive Director has taken longer than anticipated and an Interim Executive Director is 
now recommended to help set-up and organize the new agency.  
 
Discussion: 
At this point in the development of the JPA, STA staff and staff from the Cities of 
Benicia and Vallejo are recommending that an Interim Executive Director be retained to 
act as staff on behalf of the new entity.  This would provide much needed staff support 
and leadership for existing transit staff with Benicia and Vallejo.  The individual 
recommended to fill this position is Jim McElroy who has decades of transit experience 
at the local, regional and State levels.  He was the General Manager at UC Davis’ 
Unitrans System for 24 years and a Division Manager at Los Angeles MTA.   In addition, 
he has served as the Deputy Executive Director of the California Transit Association 
(CTA) (see resume, Attachment A).  Most recently he has been the Interim Transit 
Manager at Fairfield and Suisun Transit (FAST).  As FAST has recently hired a 
permanent Transit Manager, he is completing this responsibility.  A scope of work has 
been prepared (Attachment B). 
  
As SolTrans does not yet have a budget,, funds, staff, or operating procedures to manage 
a contract, the STA would initially hold the contract, but the individual would report to 
the SolTrans Board.  This person would take the lead in guiding the new organization so 
that it can prepare the organization for hiring employees, holding administrative and 
service contracts, and performing its financial duties in accordance with local, regional, 
State and Federal guidelines.  The interim position would be replaced with the hiring of a 
permanent Executive Director within the next six to nine months. 

15



This arrangement has been discussed with Vallejo and Benicia transit staff, who are 
supportive.  At its May 11, 2011 meeting, the STA Board approved entering into this 
contract contingent upon the approval of the SolTrans Board approval. STA and SolTrans 
Vice Chair Patterson requested that the SolTrans Board meet with the candidate prior to 
the selection.  In response, a closed session prior to the May 19th SolTrans Board meeting 
has been scheduled.     
 
Fiscal Impact: 
This $40,000 initial contract will be funded with State Transit Assistance Funds and 
funds are available in the FY 2010-11 STA budget to begin this contract and have been 
committed by STA to SolTrans as part of the FY 2011-12 budget.  It is anticipated that 
the contract will be transferred to SolTrans in FY2011-12 and that funding for any 
contract extensions will be funded with SolTrans operating revenue.    
 
Recommendation: 
Request the STA to enter into a contract with Jim McElroy to serve as the Interim 
Executive Director for SolTrans as defined by the Scope of Services shown in 
Attachment B. 
 
Attachment: 

A. Jim McElroy Resume 
B. Draft Scope of Work and Schedule 

16



 CAREER RESUME 
 
 JAMES H. (JIM) McELROY 
 

 

 
 
 
 

 
 

EDUCATION BS Civil Engineering, University of California, Davis, CA. 
 

WORK  
EXPERIENCE 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

California Transit Association 

Sacramento, CA 

Deputy Executive Director 

Length of Service – 5 years 

 
Association represents all of the major California transit agencies.  Chief of 
Staff to the Executive Director and the 25 member governing board.  Performed 
staff analysis on regulations, legislation, and Association management issues.  
Held leadership role in gaining consensus positions for the Association.  
Prepared staff reports for the board of directors and its committees.  Oversaw 
staff to execute the affairs of the Association. Represent the Association and its 
members to government regulatory agencies, legislative staff, and the public. 
 
Los Angeles MTA  

Westside/Central Service Sector 

Los Angeles, CA 

Sector General Manager/Division Transportation Manager 

Length of Service – 2 years 

 
General Manager of the MTA’s largest “service sector” serving the area from 
downtown Los Angeles to Santa Monica. Includes three bus operating bases 
totaling over 1,300 employees, 650 buses, and a $140 million operating budget. 
 Responsible for all sector functions including maintenance, operations, finance, 
service development, community relations, and government relations.  
Established sector’s governance council.  Managed four union contracts as well 
as non-contract employees.  
 
Transportation Manager of the MTA’s West Hollywood Division of 260 buses 
and 400 employees, including three assistant managers and 23 supervisors.  
Oversaw all operations functions including street operations, instruction, and 
dispatching.  Promoted to Sector General Manager. 
 
 

 

17

jmasiclat
Typewritten Text
ATTACHMENT A

jmasiclat
Typewritten Text



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
RELATED 
AFFILIATIONS 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Unitrans 

Davis, CA 

General Manager 

Length of Service - 24 years 

 
Unitrans provides public transit service for the City of Davis and the University 
of California campus. Guided development from 12 buses and 3,000 daily 
boardings to over 45 buses and 25,000 daily boardings. Managed 200 
employees in a harmonious and highly successful environment. Successfully 
built broad consensus in a challenging municipal and university environment. 
Developed and managed multi-million dollar federal grant programs.  Secured 
discretionary and apportioned funds from multiple funding sources.  Created 
federal grant program and handled transition to federal grant recipient. Brought 
clean fuel natural gas technology, vehicles, and facilities to Davis. Created 
broad basis of support from elected officials and staff. 
 
Additional Employment History:  Available upon request. 

 
 

 
 Chair (1998-2000), Executive Committee, California Transit Association. 
 Member (1994-2000, 2001-2003), Executive Committee, California Transit 

Association.   
 Chair (1994-1998), Small Operators Steering Committee, California Transit 

Association. 
 Chair (1995), Subcommittee on Efficiency, California Transit Association. 
 Chair (2000-2005), Program Committee, California Transit Association. 
 Chair (1995-2003), Transit Coordinating Committee, Sacramento Area 

Council of Governments (SACOG). 
 Chair (2002-2003):  Smart Growth Task Force, California Transit 

Association. 

  

  
 

18



ATTACHMENT B 
 

Interim Executive Director 
for 

Solano County Transit (SolTrans) 
 

Scope of Work 
 

The Interim Executive Director would guide the establishment of the newly forming 
SolTrans Joint Powers Authority (JPA) into a functioning agency.  This will include the 
following: 
 

• Be the primary staff contact to the SolTrans Board; 
• Attend Solano County Transit Board meetings as well as Working Group and  

Management Committees; 
• Complete the implementation of the approve SolTrans Transition Plan; 
• Manage the SolTrans budget; 
• Manage the transition and transfer of functions, assets and agreements for 

partner agencies. 
• Work and coordinate with SolTrans member agencies and service contractors; 
• Work with regional, State and Federal agencies on behalf of SolTrans as 

needed; 
• Establish policies and procedures in conjunction with the new SolTrans Board 

to become a functional institution. 
• Guide the development of a joint Benicia/Vallejo area SRTP 
• Guide existing transit staff and the development of the organizational structure 

of SolTrans  
• Facilitate recruitment and training of a  permanent Executive Director  

 
 
Initial Term and Budget: $40,000 thru September 30, 2011 
Optional 3-month terms (2): $35,000/qtr 
 
Hourly Rate:  $100/hr 
Average Monthly Hours:  96 

19



This page intentionally left blank. 

20



Agenda Item VIII.C 
May 19, 2011 

 
Solano County Transit 

(SolTrans) 
 
DATE:  May 13, 2011 
TO:  SolTrans Board 
FROM: Nancy Whelan, Financial Consultant 
  Bernadette Curry, Legal Counsel 
RE: FTA Compliance Requirements and Status 
 
 
Discussion:  
To become a Federal Transit Administration (FTA) grantee, SolTrans must demonstrate 
technical, legal, and financial capacity to manage the transit system.  Additionally, 
SolTrans will be required to provide Certifications and Assurances for FTA Assistance 
Programs to be able to draw on FTA grant funds. 
 
Several policies and programs must be in place to meet FTA requirements to be an 
eligible grantee. The following policies and programs are presented for consideration at 
the May 19th SolTrans Board meeting. 
 

• DBE Policy and Goals  
• Public Participation Process for Fare and Service Changes 
• Drug Free Workplace Policy 

 
Additional policies will be presented to the Board in the coming months. 
 
DBE Policy and Goals 
As a condition of receiving federal transportation grants, SolTrans must certify that it will 
comply with the federal requirements for a DBE program found in 49 CFR Part 26. The 
policy and program is included in Attachment A, and states that it is the policy of 
SolTrans to ensure that DBEs as defined in part 26, have an equal opportunity to receive 
and participate in DOT–assisted contracts.  The policy designates the SolTrans 
Purchasing and Grants Manager as the DBE Liaison Officer as the person responsible for 
implementing the program. 
 
An Annual Anticipated DBE Participation Level (AADPL) must be established for 
contracts awarded with federal funds. The AADPL for SolTrans for FY 2010-11 is 6%.  
A description of the methodology to calculate the overall goal and the goal calculations 
can be found in the attachment.   
 
No later than June 15th, a notice announcing the proposed overall goal must be published 
in a general circulation newspaper, informing the public that the proposed goal and its 
rationale are available for inspection during normal business hours at the principal office 
for 30 days following the date of the notice, and informing the public that comments on 
the goals will be accepted for 45 days from the date of the notice. The DBE goals must be 
submitted to FTA no later than August 1, 2011. Staff will return to the Board with a 
recommendation for approval of the final goals after the comment period has expired, and 
no later than the July Board meeting. The DBE goals section of the program will be 
updated annually. 

21



Public Participation Policy 
As a part of the FTA certifications and assurances grantees certify that they have a locally 
developed process to solicit and consider public comment prior to raising a fare or 
implementing major reduction in public transportation service.  Grantees are expected to 
have a written policy that describes the public comment process. The policy should 
provide an opportunity for a public hearing or meeting for any fare increase or major 
service reduction. It should describe how such meetings will be conducted and how the 
results will be considered. A public meeting is not mandatory; however, an opportunity 
for a public meeting in order to solicit comment must be provided.  
 
To meet this requirement, staff recommends adoption of the attached Public Participation 
Policy. 
 
Drug Free Workplace Policy 
FTA requires all grantees to have and distribute to transit related employees a written 
policy that states that the workplace is drug-free and that it prohibits the unlawful 
manufacture, distribution, dispensing, possession, or use of a controlled substance in the 
workplace. SolTrans must notify employees that they must abide by the terms of the 
policy statement as a condition of employment. SolTrans must inform all employees that, 
if convicted of a drug statute violation that occurred in the workplace, they are to report it 
to the employer in writing no later than five calendar days after such a conviction. This 
policy is applicable to all transit related employees, not just safety-sensitive employees. 
 
Additionally, SolTrans must establish an ongoing drug-free awareness program and must 
report to FTA an employee’s criminal conviction for drug statute violations that occur in 
the workplace within ten days of notification.  SolTrans must take appropriate 
disciplinary action within 30 days of receipt of notification of an employee’s criminal 
conviction. 
 
Recommendation: 
Approve the following 

1. Adopt the SolTrans DBE policy and program as set forth in Attachment A; 
2. Authorize publication of the overall Disadvantaged Business Enterprise goals for 

FY 2011 as set forth in Attachment A; 
3. Adopt the SolTrans Public Participation Policy for Fare and Service Changes as 

set forth in Attachment B; and 
4. Adopt the SolTrans Drug Free Workplace Policy as set forth in Attachment C. 

 
Attachments: 

A. SolTrans DBE Program Policy Statement 
B. SolTrans Public Involvement Policy for Fare and Service Changes 
C. SolTrans Drug Free Workplace Policy 

22



   

 Page 1 of 16  

 
ATTACHMENT A 

 
SOLTRANS DBE PROGRAM 

 
POLICY STATEMENT 

 
Section 26.1, 26.23  Objectives/Policy Statement 
 
Solano County Transit (SolTrans) has established a Disadvantaged Business Enterprise (DBE) 
program in accordance with regulations of the U.S. Department of Transportation (DOT), 49 CFR 
Part 26.  SolTrans has received or will receive Federal financial assistance from the Department 
of Transportation, and as a condition of receiving this assistance, SolTrans has signed an 
assurance that it will comply with 49 CFR Part 26. 
 
It is the policy of SolTrans to ensure that DBEs as defined in Part 26, have an equal opportunity 
to receive and participate in DOT–assisted contracts.  It is also our policy: 
 

1. To ensure nondiscrimination in the award and administration of DOT – assisted 
contracts; 

2. To create a level playing field on which DBEs can compete fairly for DOT-assisted 
contracts; 

3. To ensure that the DBE Program is narrowly tailored in accordance with applicable 
law; 

4. To ensure that only firms that fully meet 49 CFR Part 26 eligibility standards are 
permitted to participate as DBEs; 

5. To help remove barriers to the participation of DBEs in DOT assisted contracts; 
6. To assist the development of firms that can compete successfully in the market place 

outside the DBE Program. 
 
The Purchasing and Grants Manager has been delegated as the DBE Liaison Officer.  In that 
capacity, the Purchasing and Grants Manager is responsible for implementing all aspects of the 
DBE program.  Implementation of the DBE program is accorded the same priority as compliance 
with all other legal obligations incurred by SolTrans in its financial assistance agreements with the 
Department of Transportation. 
 
SolTrans has disseminated this policy statement to the SolTrans Board of Directors and all of the 
components of our organization.  We have distributed this statement to DBE and non-DBE 
business communities that perform work for us on DOT-assisted contracts by inclusion in our Bid 
and Proposal documents.  
 
 
 
______________________________    ________________ 
SolTrans CEO       Date 
 
  

23



   

 Page 2 of 16  

SUBPART A – GENERAL REQUIREMENTS 
 

Section 26.1  Objectives 
 
The objectives are found in the policy statement on the first page of this program. 
 
Section 26.3  Applicability 
 
 
SolTrans is a recipient of federal transit funds authorized by Titles I, III, V, and VI of ISTEA, Pub. 
L. 102-240 or by Federal transit laws in Title 49, U.S. Code, or Titles I, II, and V of the Teas-21, 
Pub. L. 105-178. 
 
Section 26.5  Definitions 
 
SolTrans will adopt the definitions contained in Section 26.5 for this program. 
 
Section 26.7  Non-discrimination Requirements 
 
SolTrans will never exclude any person from participation in, deny any person the benefits of, or 
otherwise discriminate against anyone in connection with the award and performance of any 
contract covered by 49 CFR Part 26 on the basis of race, color, sex, or national origin. 
 
In administering its DBE program, SolTrans will not, directly or through contractual or other 
arrangements, use criteria or methods of administration that have the effect of defeating or 
substantially impairing accomplishment of the objectives of the DBE program with respect to 
individuals of a particular race, color, sex, or national origin.   
 
Section 26.11 Record Keeping Requirements 
 
Reporting to DOT: 26.11(b) 
 
We will report DBE participation to DOT as follows: 
 
We will report DBE participation in accordance with current DOT regulations and forms.  These 
reports will reflect payments actually made to DBEs on DOT-assisted contracts. 
 
Bidders List: 26.11(c) 
 
SolTrans will create a bidders list, consisting of information about all DBE and non-DBE firms that 
bid or quote on DOT-assisted contracts.  The purpose of this requirement is to allow use of the 
bidders list approach to calculating overall goals.  The bidder list will include the name, address, 
DBE non-DBE status, age, and annual gross receipts of firms.   
 
We will collect this information in the following ways: 
 
We will require the potential bidders to fill out a form that gathers the required data in 
order to receive addenda and solicitation updates. This same form will presented to any 
firm that wants to be on SolTrans’ Bidders list for notice of opportunities.  

 
Section 26.13 Federal Financial Assistance Agreement  
 
Authority has signed the following assurances, applicable to all DOT-assisted contracts and their 
administration:  
 
Assurance:  26.13(a) 

24



   

 Page 3 of 16  

 
Authority shall not discriminate on the basis of race, color, national origin, or sex 
in the award and performance of any DOT assisted contract or in the 
administration of its DBE Program or the requirements of 49 CFR Part 26.  The 
recipient shall take all necessary and reasonable steps under 49 CFR Part 26 to 
ensure nondiscrimination in the award and administration of DOT assisted 
contracts.  The recipient’s DBE Program, as required by 49 CFR Part 26 and as 
approved by DOT, is incorporated by reference in this agreement.  
Implementation of this program is a legal obligation and failure to carry out its 
terms shall be treated as a violation of this agreement.  Upon notification to 
SolTrans of its failure to carry out its approved program, the Department may 
impose sanction as provided for under Part 26 and may, in appropriate cases, 
refer the matter for enforcement under 18 U.S.C. 1001 and/or the Program Fraud 
Civil Remedies Act of 1986 (31 U.S.C. 3801 et seq.). 

 
This language will appear in financial assistance agreements with sub-recipients. 
 
 
Contract Assurance: 26.13b 
 
We will ensure that the following clause is placed in every DOT-assisted contract and 
subcontract: 
 

The contractor, sub-recipient, or subcontractor shall not discriminate on the basis of race, 
color, national origin, or sex in the performance of this contract.  The contractor shall 
carry out applicable requirements of 49 CFR Part 26 in the award and administration of 
DOT assisted contracts.  Failure by the contractor to carry out these requirements is a 
material breach of this contract, which may result in the termination of this contract or 
such other remedy as the recipient deems appropriate.  

 
[Note: This language is to be used verbatim, as it is stated in 26.13(b)] 
 

SUBPART B - ADMINISTRATIVE REQUIREMENTS 
 
Section 26.21 DBE Program Updates 
 
Since SolTrans has received a grant of $250,000 or more in FTA planning capital, and or 
operating assistance in a federal fiscal year, we will continue to carry out this program until all 
funds from DOT financial assistance have been expended.  We will provide to DOT updates 
representing significant changes in the program.   
 
Section 26.23 Policy Statement 
 
The Policy Statement is elaborated on the first page of this program. 
 
Section 26.25 DBE Liaison Officer (DBELO) 
 
We have designated the following individual as our DBE Liaison Officer: 
 
Procurement Manager 
311 Sacramento Street, Vallejo, CA  94590 
Telephone: 707.648.5288 
Greg.anderson@soltrans.com 
 
In that capacity, the DBELO is responsible for implementing all aspects of the DBE program and 
ensuring that SolTrans complies with all provision of 49 CFR Part 26.  The DBELO has direct, 

25



   

 Page 4 of 16  

independent access to the Chief Executive Officer concerning DBE program matters.  An 
organization chart displaying the DBELO’s position in the organization is found in Attachment A to 
this program.   
 
The DBELO is responsible for developing, implementing and monitoring the DBE program, in 
coordination with other appropriate officials.  The DBELO shall ensure that the duties below are 
carried out through staff or contracted staff augmentation.  The duties and responsibilities 
include the following: 
 

1. Gathers and reports statistical data and other information as required by DOT. 
2. Reviews third party contracts and purchase requisitions for compliance with this 

program. 
3. Works with all departments to set overall annual goals. 
4. Ensures that bid notices and requests for proposals are available to DBEs in a 

timely manner. 
5. Identifies contracts and procurements so that DBE goals are included in solicitations 

(both race-neutral methods and identifies ways to improve progress). 
6. Analyzes SolTrans’ progress toward attainment and identifies ways to improve 

progress. 
7. Participates in pre-bid meetings. 
8. Advises the CEO on DBE matters and achievement. 
9. Chairs the DBE Advisory Committee. 
10. Participates in pre-bid meetings. 
11. Provides DBEs with information and assistance in preparing bids, obtaining bonding 

and insurance. 
12. Plans and participates in DBE training seminars. 
13. Acts as liaison to the Uniform Certification Process in California. 
14. Provides outreach to DBEs and community organizations to advise them of 

opportunities. 
15. Maintains SolTrans’ updated directory on certified DBEs. 

 
 
Section 26.27 DBE Financial Institutions 
 
It is the policy of SolTrans to investigate the full extent of services offered by financial institutions 
owned and controlled by socially and economically disadvantaged individuals in the community, 
to make reasonable efforts to use these institutions, and to encourage prime contractors on 
DOT-assisted contract to make use of these institutions.  We have made the following efforts to 
identify and use such institutions:  
 
The DEBLO has researched the website for The Federal Reserve Board at  
www.federalreserve.gov/releases/mob/ to identify minority-owned banks. The DEBLO will 
continue to use this source to continue to solicit minority-owned banks to participate in SolTrans’ 
DBE Program. 
  
To date, the DEBLO has identified the following minority-owned financial institutions that offer 
services in the San Francisco Bay Area  (as of April 1, 2011):  

26



   

 Page 5 of 16  

 
 
Together with SolTrans’ other staff the DEBLO shall explore the full extent of services offered by 
banks and other financial institutions that qualify as DBEs in the San  
Francisco Bay Area and determine areas in which SolTrans may reasonably utilize their 
services.  SolTrans shall also encourage its prime contractors to use the services of DBE 
financial institutions. 
 
Information on the availability of such institutions can be obtained from the DBE Liaison Officer.   
 
Section 26.29 Prompt Payment Mechanisms 
 
SolTrans will include the following clause in each DOT-assisted prime contract:   

 
The agency shall hold retainage from the prime contractor and provide for prompt 
and regular incremental acceptances of portions, as determined by the agency of 
the contract work and pay retainage to the prime contractor based on these 
acceptances.  The prime contractor or subcontractor shall return all monies 
withheld in retention from all subcontractors within 30-days after receiving 
payment for work satisfactorily completed and accepted including incremental 
acceptances of portions of the contract work by the agency.  Any delay or 
postponement of payment may take place only for good cause and with the 
agency’s prior written approval.  Any violation of these provisions shall subject 
the violating prime contractor to the penalties, sanctions, and other remedies 
specified in Section 7108.5 of the California Business Professions Code.  This 
requirement shall not be construed to limit or impair any contractual, 
administrative, or judicial remedies, otherwise available to the contractor or 
subcontractor in the event of: a dispute involving late payment or nonpayment by 
the contractor; deficient subcontractor performance; and/or noncompliance by a 
subcontractor.  This clause applies to both DBE and non-DBE subcontractors. 

 
 
Section 26.31 Directory 
 
SolTrans utilizes the State of California (UCPC) DBE database located at 
http://www.dot.ca.gov/hq/bep/find_certified.htm , and is a member of the UCPC per the attached 
MOU.  
 
Section 26.33 Overconcentration 
 
SolTrans has not identified that overconcentration exists in the types of work that DBEs perform. 
Overconcentration will be assessed as a part of the goal setting methodology.  
 

BANK OF THE ORIENT , MILLBRAE BR MILLBRAE, CA
CIRCLE BK NOVATO, CA
BANK OF THE ORIENT , OAKLAND BR OAKLAND, CA
METROPOLITAN BK OAKLAND, CA
METROPOLITAN BK , OAKLAND CHINATOWN BR OAKLAND, CA
CIRCLE BK , PETALUMA BR PETALUMA, CA
BANK OF THE ORIENT SAN FRANCISCO, CA
BANK OF THE ORIENT , SAN FRANCISCO CHINATOWN BR SAN FRANCISCO, CA
BANK OF THE ORIENT , SAN FRANCISCO CLEMENT & 6TH BR SAN FRANCISCO, CA
BANK OF THE ORIENT , SAN FRANCISCO IRVING ST BR SAN FRANCISCO, CA
CIRCLE BK , NOE VALLEY BR SAN FRANCISCO, CA
METRO UNITED BK , SAN FRANCISCO VAN NESS BR SAN FRANCISCO, CA
METROPOLITAN BK , SAN FRANCISCO BR SAN FRANCISCO, CA
METROPOLITAN BK , SAN JOSE BR SAN JOSE, CA
METRO UNITED BK , SAN MATEO NORTHERN CA BR SAN MATEO, CA
CIRCLE BK , SAN RAFAEL BR SAN RAFAEL, CA
CIRCLE BK , SANTA ROSA BR SANTA ROSA, CA

27

http://www.dot.ca.gov/hq/bep/find_certified.htm


   

 Page 6 of 16  

Section 26.35 Business Development Programs 
 
As a new agency SolTrans has not established a business development program, but is aware of 
the requirements of Section 26.39 to develop a program to develop Small Business Participation. 
It is SolTran’s goal to use the required Small business development program that must be 
developed by January 1, 2012, to meet the requirements of both 26.35 and 26.39.   
 
Section 26.37 Monitoring and Enforcement Mechanisms 
 
SolTrans will take the following monitoring and enforcement mechanisms to ensure compliance 
with 49 CFR Part 26.   
 
 
SolTrans will assign a Resident Engineer (RE) or Contract Manager to monitor and track actual 
DBE participation through contractor and subcontractor reports of payments in accordance with 
the following: 
 
After Contract Award  
 
Prior to contract award SolTrans will review the award documents for the portion of items each 
DBE and first tier subcontractor will be performing and the dollar value of that work.  With these 
documents the RE/Contract Manager will be able to determine the work to be performed by the 
DBEs or subcontractors listed. 
 
Preconstruction Conference 
 
A preconstruction conference will be scheduled between the RE and the contractor or their 
representative to discuss the work each DBE subcontractor will perform. 
 
Before work can begin on a subcontract, the local agency will require the contractor to submit a 
completed “Subcontracting Request,” Exhibit 16-B of the LAPM or equivalent.  When the RE 
receives the completed form it will be checked for agreement of the first tier subcontractors and 
DBEs.  The RE will not approve the request when it identifies someone other than the DBE or first 
tier subcontractor listed in the previously completed “Local Agency Bidder DBE Information,” 
Exhibit 15-G.  The “Subcontracting Request” will not be approved until any discrepancies are 
resolved.  If an issue cannot be resolved at that time, or there is some other concern, the RE will 
require the contractor to eliminate the subcontractor in question before signing the subcontracting 
request.  A change in the DBE or first tier subcontractor may be addressed during a substitution 
process at a later date. 
 
Suppliers, vendors, or manufacturers listed on the “Local Agency Bidder DBE Information” will be 
compared to those listed in the completed Exhibit 16-I of the LAPM or equivalent.  Differences 
must be resolved by either making corrections or requesting a substitution. 
 
Substitutions will be subject to the Subletting and Subcontracting Fair Practices Act (FPA).  Local 
agencies will require contractors to adhere to the provisions within Subletting and Subcontracting 
Fair Practices Act (State Law) Sections 4100-4144.  FPA requires the contractor to list all 
subcontractors in excess of one half of one percent (0.5%) of the contractor’s total bid or $10,000, 
whichever is greater.  The statute is designed to prevent bid shopping by contractors.  The FPA 
explains that a contractor may not substitute a subcontractor listed in the original bid except with 
the approval of the awarding authority. 
 
The RE will give the contractor a blank Exhibit 17-F, “Final Report Utilization of Disadvantaged 
Business Enterprises, First Tier Subcontractors” and will explain to them that the document will 
be required at the end of the project, for which payment can be withheld, in conformance with the 
contract. 

28



   

 Page 7 of 16  

 
Construction Contract Monitoring 
 
The RE will ensure that the RE’s staff (inspectors) know what items of work each DBE is 
responsible for performing.  Inspectors will notify the RE immediately of apparent violations. 
 
When a firm other than the listed DBE subcontractor is found performing the work, the RE will 
notify the contractor of the apparent discrepancy and potential loss of payment.  Based on the 
contractor’s response, the RE will take appropriate action:  The DBE Liaison Officer will perform a 
preliminary investigation to identify any potential issues related to the DBE subcontractor 
performing a commercially useful function.  Any substantive issues will be forwarded to the 
Caltrans Disadvantaged Business Enterprise Program.  If the contractor fails to adequately 
explain why there is a discrepancy, payment for the work will be withheld and a letter will be sent 
to the contractor referencing the applicable specification violation and the required withholding of 
payment. 
 
If the contract requires the submittal of a monthly truck document, the contractor will be required 
to submit documentation to the RE showing the owner’s name; California Highway Patrol CA 
number; and the DBE certification number of the owner of the truck for each truck used during 
that month for which DBE participation will be claimed.  The trucks will be listed by California 
Highway Patrol CA number in the daily diary or on a separate piece of paper for documentation.  
The numbers are checked by inspectors regularly to confirm compliance. 
 
Providing evidence of DBE payment is the responsibility of the contractor. 
 
Substitution 
 
When a DBE substitution is requested, the RE/Contract Manager will request a letter from the 
contractor explaining why substitution is needed.  The RE/Contract Manager must review the 
letter to be sure names and addresses are shown, dollar values are included, and reason for the 
request is explained.  If the RE/Contract Manager agrees to the substitution, the RE/Contract 
Manager will notify, in writing, the DBE subcontractor regarding the proposed substitution and 
procedure for written objection from the DBE subcontractor in accordance with the Subletting and 
Subcontracting Fair Practices Act.  If the contractor is not meeting the contract goal with this 
substitution, the contractor must provide the required good faith effort to the RE/Contract 
Manager for local agency consideration. 
 
If there is any doubt in the RE/Contract Manager’s mind regarding the requested substitution, the 
RE/Contract Manager may contact the DLAE for assistance and direction. 
 
Record Keeping and Final Report Utilization of Disadvantaged Business Enterprises  
 
The contractor shall maintain records showing the name and address of each first-tier 
subcontractor.  The records shall also show: 
 

1. The name and business address, regardless of tier, of every DBE subcontractor, DBE 
vendor of materials and DBE trucking company. 

2. The date of payment and the total dollar figure paid to each of the firms. 
3. The DBE prime contractor shall also show the date of work performed by their own forces 

along with the corresponding dollar value of the work claimed toward DBE goals. 
 
When a contract has been completed the contractor will provide a summary of the records stated 
above.  The DBE utilization information will be documented on the appropriate form. The RE will 
compare the completed Exhibit 17-F to the contractor’s completed Exhibit 15-G and, if applicable, 
to the completed Exhibit 16-B.  The DBEs shown on the completed Exhibit 17-F should be the 
same as those originally listed unless an authorized substitution was allowed, or the contractor 

29



   

 Page 8 of 16  

used more DBEs and they were added.  The dollar amount should reflect any changes made in 
planned work done by the DBE.  The contractor will be required to explain in writing why the 
names of the subcontractors, the work items or dollar figures are different from what was 
originally shown on the completed Exhibit 15-G when: 
 
• There have been no changes made by the RE. 
• The contractor has not provided a sufficient explanation in the comments section of the 
completed Exhibit 17-F. 
 
The explanation will be attached to the completed Exhibit 17-F for submittal.  The RE will file this 
in the project records. 
 
The local agency’s DBE Liaison Officer will keep track of the DBE certification status on the 
Internet at www.dot.ca.gov/hq/bep and keep the RE informed of changes that affect the contract.  
The RE will require the contractor to act in accordance with existing contractual commitments 
regardless of decertification. 
 
The DLAE will use the PS&E checklist to monitor SolTrans’ commitment to require bidders list 
information to be submitted to SolTrans from the awarded prime and subcontractors as a means 
to develop a bidders list.  This monitoring will only take place if the bidders list information is 
required to be submitted as stipulated in the special provisions. 
 
SolTrans will bring to the attention of the DOT through the DLAE any false, fraudulent, or 
dishonest conduct in connection with the program, so that DOT can take the steps (e.g., referral 
to the Department of Justice for criminal prosecution, referral to the DOT Inspector General, 
action under suspension and debarment or Program Fraud and Civil Penalties rules) provided in 
§26.109.  SolTrans also will consider similar action under its own legal authorities, including 
responsibility determinations in future contracts.  
 

SUBPART C – GOALS, GOOD FAITH EFFORTS, AND COUNTING 
 
Section 26.43 Set-asides or Quotas 
 
The SolTrans does not use quotas in any way in the administration of this DBE program.  
 
Section 26.45 Overall Goals 
 
A description of the methodology to calculate the overall goal and the goal calculations can be 
found in Attachment B to this program.  This section of the program will be updated annually.   
 
In accordance with Section 26.45(f) the SolTrans will submit its overall goal to DOT on August 1 
of each year. Before establishing the overall three year goal, SolTrans will consult with the Solano 
County Black Chamber of Commerce (www.scbcc.org), the Solano Hispanic Chamber of 
Commerce, the Filipino-American Chamber of Commerce of Solano County 
(www.faccsolano.com) and the Vallejo Chamber of Commerce, as well as the Vallejo and Benicia 
Chambers of commerce  and other relevant associations to obtain information concerning the 
availability of disadvantaged and non-disadvantaged businesses, the effects of discrimination on 
opportunities for DBEs, and SolTrans’ efforts to establish a level playing field for the participation 
of DBEs. 
 
Following this consultation, we will publish a notice of the proposed overall goals in the Vallejo 
Times Herald informing the public that the proposed goal and its rational are available for 
inspection during normal business hours at your principal office for 30 days following the date of 
the notice, and informing the public that you and DOT will accept comments on the goals for 45 
days from the date of the notice.  Normally, we will issue this notice by June 1 every three years, 

30



   

 Page 9 of 16  

beginning June 1, 2011.  The notice must include addresses to which comments may be sent and 
addresses (including offices and websites) where the proposal may be reviewed.  
 
Our overall goal submission to DOT will include a summary of information and comments 
received during this public participation process and our responses.   
 
We will begin using our overall goal on October 1 of each year, unless we have received other 
instructions from DOT.   If we establish a goal on a project basis, we will begin using our goal by 
the time of the first solicitation for a DOT-assisted contract for the project.   
 
Section 26.49 Transit Vehicle Manufacturers Goals 
 
SolTrans will require each transit vehicle manufacturer, as a condition of being authorized to bid 
or propose on FTA-assisted transit vehicle procurements, to certify that it has complied with the 
requirements of this section.   
 
Section 26.51(a-c) Estimated Race-Neutral Participation  
 
The breakout of estimated race-neutral participation can be found in Attachment B to this 
program.  This section of the program will be updated every three years when the anticipated 
level of DBE participation calculation is updated.   
 
Section 26.51(d-g) Contract Goals 
 
The SolTrans will not use contract specific goals as part of its Race-Neutral program 
implementation. SolTrans currently operates under a Race-Neutral program, and this policy will 
be updated if and when a Race-Conscious program is implemented. 
 
Section 26.53 Good Faith Efforts Procedures 
 
Demonstration of good faith efforts (26.53(a) & (c)) 
 
SolTrans will not utilize good faith efforts in its Race-Neutral program.  
 
Section 26.55 Counting DBE Participation 
 
We will count DBE participation toward overall goals as provided in 49 CFR 26.55. 
 

SUBPART D – CERTIFICATION STANDARDS 
 
Section 26.61 – 26.73 Certification Process 
 
SolTrans will be a member of the State of California Unified Certificaiton Program as a non-
certifying member.  
 

SUBPART E – CERTIFICATION PROCEDURES 
 
Section 26.81 Unified Certification Programs 
 
SolTrans is the member of a Unified Certification Program (UCP) administered by CalTrans.  The 
UPC will meet all of the requirements of this section. CalTrans UCP description is located at: 
http://www.dot.ca.gov/hq/bep/ucp.htm .    
 
 

31

http://www.dot.ca.gov/hq/bep/ucp.htm


   

 Page 10 of 16  

SUBPART F – COMPLIANCE AND ENFORCEMENT 
 
Section 26.109 Information, Confidentiality, Cooperation  
 
We will safeguard from disclosure to third parties information that may reasonably be regarded as 
confidential business information, consistent with Federal, state, and local law.   
 
Monitoring Payments to DBEs 
 
We will require prime contractors to maintain records and documents of payments to DBEs for 
three years following the performance of the contract.  These records will be make available for 
inspection upon request by any authorized representative of the SolTrans or DOT.  This reporting 
requirement also extends to any certified DBE subcontractor. 
 
We will perform interim audits of contract payments to DBEs.  The audit will review payments to 
DBE subcontractors to ensure that the actual amount paid to DBE subcontractors equals or 
exceeds the dollar amounts states in the schedule of DBE participation.   
 
ATTACHMENTS 
 
 
Attachment A  Organizational Chart  
Attachment B  Overall Goal Calculation 
Attachment C  Regulations: 49 CRR Part 26 

32



Solano County Transit (SolTrans)
Organizational Chart

Finance Officer
•ECHO/TEAM System
•Annual NTD

Grants/Procurement  
Manager
• DBE Program
• DEBLO
•TEAM System
• Project Management

• Contract Administration
•Title VI
•Safety
•MIS Report

Operations/
Planning ManagerFinance Officer

Purchasing/Grants 
Manager

Executive Director

Operations/Planning Mgr

Clerk of the Board/
Office Manager

Customer Service
Coordinator

Clerk of the Board/Office Mgr

•
•
•
•

33



This page intentionally left blank. 

34



   

 Page 12 of 16  

Attachment B 
 

Section 26.45: Overall Goal Calculation and Methodology (Example) 
 
 

SOLTRANS 
FY 2010-11 ANNUAL ANTICIPATED DBE PARTICIPATION LEVEL  

(AADPL) METHODOLOGY  
 
In accordance with Title 49 of the Code of Federal Regulations, Part 26 (49 CFR Part 
26), an Annual Anticipated DBE Participation Level (AADPL) must be established for 
contracts awarded with federal funds. A two-step methodology process described in 49 
CFR Part 26 must be used to determine the AADPL. Step One of the methodology 
establishes a base figure for the relative availability of DBEs that are ready, willing, and 
able to participate in federally funded DOT-assisted projects. Step Two relies on 
SolTrans’ knowledge of its contracting markets to determine if an adjustment to the base 
figure is needed. Each methodology is discussed in detail below.  
 

Step 1 –Use of DBE Directories and Census Bureau Data  
SolTrans followed the following procedure to determine the percentage of ready, 
willing and able DBE’s in our market.  Using the Census Bureau’s County Business 
Pattern (CBP) database, we determined the number of all ready, willing and able 
business available in our market that perform work in the same North American 
Industry Classification System (NAICS) codes and then weight the NAICS codes in 
proportion to the funding that will be used for each code. The City then divides the 
number of DBE’s by the number of all businesses to derive a base figure for the 
relative availability of DBE’s in our market, and multiplies that by the appropriate 
weighting. The City remains under a race-neutral program for its FTA funded 
projects, and therefore the program does not include race-neutral / race conscious 
split of the AADPL as there is no race conscious component.  

SolTrans 2010-11 AADPL           

NAICs 

Breakdown of Associated NAICs Codes 
by Census Burea and UCP Data and 

weighted by Project $$ To
ta

l 
Es

ta
bl

ish
m

en
ts

 
in

 M
ar

ke
t A

re
a*

 

To
ta

l D
BE

 F
irm

s 
Lo

ca
te

d 
in

 
M

ar
ke

t A
re

a*
 

DB
E 

%
 in

 
M

ar
ke

t 

W
ei

gh
t*

* 

AA
DP

L 
237310 Highway, Street, and Bridge Construction 231 53 22.9% 14.86% 3.4085% 

238110 
Poured Concrete Foundation and Structure 
Contractors  539 19 3.5% 1.19% 0.0419% 

238210 Electrical Contractors  2050 61 3.0% 5.94% 0.1768% 

238220 
Plumbing, Heating, and Air-Conditioning 
Contractors 2088 14 0.7% 22.63% 0.1517% 

238290 Other Building Equipment Contractors 165 0 0.0% 11.88% 0.0000% 
238990 All Other Specialty Trade Contractors 824 48 5.8% 35.65% 2.0770% 
541511 Custom Computer Programming Services  3689 55 1.5% 7.84% 0.1169% 

  
       

  
       

  
     

  

  
 

Overall Base Figure: 
  

5.9729% 
*  Market area = Alameda, Contra Costa, Marin, Napa, Sacramento, San Francisco, San Mateo, Santa Clara, Solano, Sonoma, Yolo Counties plus statewide 

35



   

 Page 13 of 16  

DBEs 
  

     
  

** Weight = percentage of that NAIC within each project * percentage of each project to the whole amount 
of $$       

 

 
 
Step 2 - Adjusting the Base Figure 
 

In order to determine if any adjustment is needed to the base figure, SolTrans 
analyzed the following factors: 
 
1. The current capacity of DBE’s to perform work in your DOT-assisted 

contracting program, as measured by the volume of work DBEs have 
performed in recent years. 

 

Past DBE Participation 
Bus Transit Center 10.5% 

Bus Maintenance Facility 1.3% 

Ferry Terminal 10.1% 
Vallejo Station 2.0% 

Average Percentage = 6.0% 
 
 

2. Evidence from disparity studies conducted anywhere within the 
jurisdiction to the extent it is not already accounted for in the base 
figure. 
SolTrans is not aware of any current disparity studies within its jurisdiction and 
/or market area that are relevant to its current projects. While the State of 
California has recently performed a disparity study, when staff inquired regarding 
its use at a jurisdictional level, it was stated that the disparity study could not be 
broken down into jurisdictional components.  
 

3. Statistical disparities in the ability of DBEs to get the financing, 
bonding and insurance required to participate in you program. 
SolTrans is not aware of any information within its jurisdiction and /or market 
area that is relevant to this type of evidence as it relates to its current projects. 

List of Projects and NAICS Code weights

NAICs Shelters
BMF Security 

Sys Building AC
Fill in Floor pit 

LT

New Filter 
Cleaning 
Machine

Replace 
leaking sink

Security 
Enhancement 

O&M 
Seal Shop 

Floor
Paratransit 
Software Weight

14.86% 5.94% 18.75% 1.19% 3.57% 0.32% 35.65% 11.88% 7.84% 100.00%
237310 100.00% 14.86%
238210 100.00% 5.94%
238220 100.00% 100.00% 100.00% 22.63%
238110 100.00% 1.19%
238990 100.00% 35.65%
238290 100.00% 11.88%
541511 100.00% 7.84%

100.00% 100.00% 100.00% 100.00% 100.00% 100.00% 100.00% 100.00% 100.00% 100.00%

36



   

 Page 14 of 16  

 
4. Data on employment, self-employment, education, training and union 

apprenticeship programs, to the extent you can relate it to the 
opportunities for DBEs to perform in your program. 
SolTrans is not aware of any information within its jurisdiction and /or market 
area that is relevant to this type of evidence as it relates to its current projects. 
 

Based on SolTrans’ review and consideration of the above factors, the evidence 
considered does not merit an adjustment to the Base Figure.  The only adjustment 
made to the base figure of 5.9729% will be to round up to 6%.  Therefore, SolTrans’ 
AADPL for Fiscal Year 2010-2011 is 6%. 

 
Race-Neutral Component 
 

Race-neutral measures:  
 

1. Arranging solicitations, times for the presentation of bids, quantities, 
specifications, and delivery schedules in ways that facilitate DBE and other small 
business participation. 

2. Providing information and communication on contracting procedures and specific 
contract opportunities.  

3. Ensuring distribution of the DBE directory, through print and electronic means to 
the widest feasible universe of potential prime contractors.  

4. Assisting DBEs and other small businesses to develop their capability to utilize 
emerging technology and conduct business through electronic media.  

 
Disadvantaged Business Enterprise Liaison Officer (DBELO) 
 

Greg Anderson 
Purchasing and Grants Manager 
SolTrans 
311 Sacramento Street 
Vallejo, CA 94590 
Office: (707) 648-5288 
Email: Greg.anderson@SolTrans.com 

 
Prompt Pay (Option 3) 
 

e agency shall hold retainage from the prime contractor and provide for prompt and regular incremental 
acceptances of portions, as determined by the agency of the contract work and pay 
retainage to the prime contractor based on these acceptances.  The prime contractor or 
subcontractor shall return all monies withheld in retention from all subcontractors within 
30-days after receiving payment for work satisfactorily completed and accepted including 
incremental acceptances of portions of the contract work by the agency.  Any delay or 
postponement of payment may take place only for good cause and with the agency’s 
prior written approval.  Any violation of these provisions shall subject the violating prime 
contractor to the penalties, sanctions, and other remedies specified in Section 7108.5 of 
the California Business Professions Code.  This requirement shall not be construed to 
limit or impair any contractual, administrative, or judicial remedies, otherwise available to 
the contractor or subcontractor in the event of: a dispute involving late payment or 

37



   

 Page 15 of 16  

nonpayment by the contractor; deficient subcontractor performance; and/or 
noncompliance by a subcontractor.  This clause applies to both DBE and non-DBE 
subcontractors. 
 
Submitted by: 
 
 
 
 
______________________________  Date:  ________________________ 
GREG ANDERSON, Purchasing and Grants Manager  
DBE Liaison Officer, SolTrans 
 
Phone Number: 707.648.5288  
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

38



   

 Page 16 of 16  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Attachment C 
  

Regulations: 49 CFR Part 26 
 
 

[Provided on request] 

39



This page intentionally left blank. 

40



ATTACHMENT B 
 
 

Solano County Transit 
(SolTrans) 

 
PUBLIC INVOLVEMENT POLICY 

FOR FARE AND SERVICE CHANGES 
 
 
The public plays a critical role in the success and vitality of public transportation in the Bay 
Area. Public input in all phases of transit – from route planning to fare structures – is essential. 
 
The following policy outlines the local process for soliciting and considering public comment 
prior to a fare increase or service changes. 
 
Definitions 
 
A fare increase is any change to an existing, established fare rate or fare type applicable to 
regular fixed route or paratransit service which results in a higher fare rate than is currently in 
effect. 
 
A major service reduction is any action that reduces services hours and/or service miles by 10 
percent of the entire system. 
 
A service change is defined as any change that: 
 
• Reduces 25 percent or more of the number of transit route miles of a single route; or 
• Reduces 25 percent or more of the number of transit revenue vehicle miles of a single route 

commuted on a daily basis for the day(s) of the week for which the change is made. 
 
An open house is a public forum to provide an opportunity for the public to learn about a project 
or proposed operational changes and to solicit public comment prior to any public hearing. 
 
A public meeting is designed to: facilitate participation in the decision-making process; assist the 
public in gaining an informed view of a proposed project at any level of the public transportation 
project development process; gather public comment. 
 
Policy 
 
SolTrans will solicit public input prior to or during the development of any proposal for a service 
change or fare increase. The public input process includes, but is not limited to, public hearings, 
public meetings, open houses, or written or electronic comment forms. SolTrans staff will 
develop recommendations as to the appropriate type and level of public input required. 
 
If a proposal involves service changes or modifications deemed to be minor, staff can either 
approve the changes/modifications or request that a public hearing be held.

41



A public hearing is mandatory when a fare increase or major service reduction is proposed. A 
determination is made related to each proposal as to the appropriate scheduling of the public 
hearing. If service changes are temporary in nature for evaluation for the proposal, the hearing 
will be held after the pilot period and the evaluation is completed. For changes in fares or 
significant service changes, the hearing will be held prior to initiation of action. 
 
SolTrans will consider and implement the principles of equality for all citizens as formulated in 
Title VI and the Executive Order for Environmental Justice to the extent reasonably possible.  
 
Hearing Process 
 
The following processes can be used for soliciting and considering public comment prior to a 
fare increase or a major service reduction: 
 
• On-going public comment. Throughout the year, SolTrans welcomes comments by riders and 

other members of the public. Comments are recorded and accumulated for consideration at 
the time of the development of draft proposals for change or system improvements. 
Comments related to service changes, including requests for new routes or other services are 
accumulated for consideration in planning activities.  
 

• An open house. See definition above 
 

• A public meeting. See definition above. 
 

• Public hearing on changes. SolTrans will approve the scheduling of any public hearings 
concerning proposed service cuts and/or fare increases. Staff will be responsible for 
scheduling a hearing. Those responsibilities include ensuring that proper notice is given. 

 
A public hearing concerning service changes or fare increases will be scheduled enough time in 
advance to allow for an additional public comment period and review of all public input by the 
transportation staff 
 
A public notice for any hearing shall be posted in at least one (1) conspicuous place in the city 
affected by the proposal. A copy of the notice also shall be published in accordance with Vallejo 
Municipal Code. 
 
For all public hearings, public meetings and open houses, public notification shall include 
posting notices in bus shelters and on system buses and vans. 
 
Development of Draft Changes in Service or Fare Changes 
 
Upon completion of a public meeting on proposed service changes/fare increases, a 10 day 
period for additional written comment will be scheduled. At the end of this period, staff will 
prepare a written summary analysis and report on the disposition of any and all comments 
received during this public comment period and at the public hearing. 
 
The SolTrans Executive Director may draft proposals for modifications to the changes in 
services or in fares based on consideration of the public comment. The Executive Director may 
also choose to act on the recommendation or require additional public input. 

42



Publication of Notice of Service/Fare Changes or Budget Adoption 
 
After final approval by the SolTrans Board of Directors, a notice is published in the local 
newspaper for all major service reductions/changes and for fare changes. Also notices will be 
posted in buses, paratransit vans, shelters and other distribution points, and on the SolTrans web 
site. 
 
 
Approved:  
 
___________________________________   _______________ 
Executive Director      Date 
 
 

43



This page intentionally left blank. 

44



ATTACHMENT C 
 

Solano County Transit 
(SolTrans) 

DRUG FREE WORKPLACE POLICY 

 

I. PURPOSE 
The purpose of this policy is to set forth SolTrans’ policy in compliance with the 
requirements of the Federal Drug-Free Workplace Act of 1988, which took effect 
March 17, 1989. Making the required certification of a drug-free work place is a 
precondition of receiving a contract or grant from a Federal agency beginning on 
March 18, 1989. 

 
II. POLICY 

SolTrans must certify to the Federal Government that it will provide a drug-free 
workplace in connection with the performance of its Federal grants and contracts. 
It is the policy of SolTrans to maintain a drug-free workplace for all employees 
and to have an ongoing drug-free awareness program.  

 
SolTrans shall notify employees that: 

• The unlawful manufacture, distribution, dispensing, possession, or use of a 
controlled substance is prohibited in the workplace. 

• Employees must abide by the terms of this policy statement as a condition 
of employment. 

• If convicted of a drug statute violation occurring in the workplace, 
employees are to report such to SolTrans in writing no later than five days 
after such a conviction. 

 
It shall also be SolTrans policy to include drug-free awareness information in its 
Drug-Free Awareness and Employee Assistance Program. 

 
III. PROCEDURE 
 

A. Employee Notification Statement  
The attached Employee Notification statement shall be given to and signed by 
all employees referred to in the Policy, above. A signed copy of the 
Notification Statement shall be retained in the employee’s personnel file. 
 

B. Employee Program  
SolTrans’ Drug Free Awareness and Employee Assistance Program shall 
include information about: 

1. The dangers of drug abuse in the workplace; 
2. SolTrans’ policy of maintaining a drug-free workplace; 
3. Any available drug counseling, rehabilitation and employee 

assistance programs; 
4. The penalties which may be imposed upon employees for  drug 

abuse violations occurring in the workplace.

45



C. Notice of Employee Convictions 
The Act requires SolTrans to notify the Federal Transit Administration 
Regional Counsel within 10 days after receiving notice (whether from an 
employee or some other source) of an employee’s drug statute conviction for a 
workplace drug violation. Within 30 days of receiving such notice, SolTrans 
is also required to take appropriate personnel action against such employee, up 
to and including termination, or to require such employee to participate 
satisfactorily in a drug abuse assistance or rehabilitation program approved for 
such purposes by a Federal, State or local health, law enforcement, or other 
appropriate agency. 
 

D. Good Faith Compliance Efforts 
SolTrans will make a good faith effort to continue to maintain a drug-free 
workplace by implementing all of the above requirements. Our failure to 
comply with the provisions of this Act may subject SolTrans to loss of 
payments under or termination of a contract, and to debarment as a federal 
contractor for up to five years.  

 
IV. SUBSTANCE ABUSE POLICY STATEMENT 

SolTrans has the responsibility to maintain a safe and efficient working 
environment. Employees who work while under the influence of drugs or alcohol 
present a safety hazard to themselves and their co-workers. Moreover, the 
presence of drugs and alcohol in the workplace limits our ability to serve our 
customers.  

A. The following conduct is grounds for discipline, up to and including 
termination: 

1. Use, possession, sale, or solicitation of illegal drugs; 
2. Unauthorized use of alcohol on SolTrans premises; 
3. Reporting to work under the influence of alcohol or illegal 

 drugs.  
 Employees with alcohol or drug dependencies are encouraged to 

seek assistance through the Employee Assistance Program. 
B. SolTrans reserves the right to require employees while on duty or on 

SolTrans property (including parking lots), to agree to inspections of 
their persons, vehicles, lockers, and/or their personal property, 
according to the state of the law. If an employee withholds consent to 
such an inspection, SolTrans may discipline the employee, up to and 
including termination. 

C. SolTrans reserves the right to investigate any possible violations of 
this Substance Abuse Policy. If an employee refuses to participate in 
such an investigation, which may include medical testing for alcohol 
or drug use, SolTrans may discipline the employee, up to and 
including termination. Such alcohol or drug testing shall be handled 
according to the state of the law. 

 
V. SUBSTANCE ABUSE SEARCH AND INSPECTION POLICY 

The use, possession, or sale of alcohol or non-prescription, illegal drugs by 
employees is strictly prohibited while on duty or on SolTrans premises, including 
parking lots. Reporting to work under the influence of alcohol or non prescription, 
illegal drugs is also strictly prohibited. Violation of these policies will result in 
disciplinary action up to and including termination.

46



VI. DRUG FREE AWARENESS PROGRAM 
 SolTrans will establish a drug-free awareness program for all its employees. 
 
VII. GOOD FAITH EFFORT 

SolTrans will make a good faith effort to maintain a drug-free workplace, by 
implementing this policy. 

 

47



 
 
SOLTRANS 
EMPLOYEE NOTIFICATION STATEMENT 
 
RE: SOLTRANS DRUG-FREE WORKPLACE POLICY 
 
TO: 
 
This statement is your official notification under the Drug-Free Workplace Act of 1988 
that the unlawful manufacture, distribution, dispensing, possession, or use of a controlled 
substance is prohibited in the workplace. Violation of this policy will result in appropriate 
disciplinary action, up to and including termination of employment, and/or the 
requirement that you satisfactorily participate in a drug abuse assistance or rehabilitation 
program as a condition of continued employment. 
 
As a present condition of employment, the undersigned employee agrees to: 
 
1.  Abide by the terms of this statement; and 
2.  Notify SolTrans of any criminal drug statute conviction for a violation 
 occurring in the workplace no later than five days after such conviction. 
 
 
I have received a copy of this Employee Notification Statement, and I agree to abide by 
the terms of this Statement. 
 
 
Employee: 
Date: 
 

48



Agenda Item VIII.D 
May 19, 2011 

 
Solano County Transit 

(SolTrans) 
 
DATE:  May 16, 2011 
TO:  SolTrans Board 
FROM: Nancy Whelan, Financial Consultant  
RE: FY 2011-12 SolTrans Annual Operating Budget 
 
 
Background: 
A draft FY 2012 SolTrans budget was presented to the Board of Directors on April 21, 2011.  
Since that time, no new information has been made available that would alter the projected costs 
and revenues for FY 2012. As presented in the draft FY 2012 budget last month, the key issue is 
to balance the first annual SolTrans operating budget in light of decreasing revenues and 
increased fuel costs. 
 
Discussion: 
In previous budget discussions, staff identified the availability of TDA reserves and the projected 
fuel prices as issues to be addressed in the FY 2012 SolTrans budget.  With the recent approval 
of the City of Vallejo’s request to repay the General Fund Loan with the TDA reserve funds, and 
the current estimates of fuel prices, SolTrans will need to cut costs by about $1,250,000 to 
balance the FY 2011-12 budget.  
 
In the Transition Plan for the transit consolidation, opportunities for cost savings through 
consolidating the contracts for service operations of the two agencies were identified.  Contract 
negotiations are underway with the service provider, MV Transit.  A contract extension of three 
months has been approved, allowing for continued negotiations that will impact the FY 2011-12 
costs.  The negotiating team has identified annual contract ranging between $1 million to $1.5 
million of more than $1 million.  For purposes of the FY 2012 SolTrans budget, the transition 
team is estimating that contract savings of $1,250,000 will be achieved.   
 
The proposed FY 2012 SolTrans Budget is provided in Attachment A.  Assumptions for each 
line item are provided in Attachment B.  Key assumptions are discussed below. 
 

• Baylink Ferry service will transfer to WETA by July 1, 2011. 
 

• New Transit Center in Vallejo will be the administrative headquarters for SolTrans.  
Costs for operating and maintaining the new facility are included in the General 
Administration line item of the budget. 

 
• STAF – Revenue Based Share is available for SolTrans to claim from Vallejo revenue 

generations.  Given the volatility of this revenue source, no STAF revenue based share 
was assumed to be available in the FY 2011-12 budget.   

 

49



• TDA fund estimates are provided by MTC.  The amount estimated to be available for FY 
2012 is based on the estimated TDA balance to be carried forward from FY 2011-12 and 
the new apportionments for FY 2012.   

 
• Other Revenue consists of lease, advertising and investment income.  No investment 

income is budgeted in FY 2011-12, although approximately $90,000 in investment 
income is projected for FY 2011-12.  
 

• Operating Contract expenditures reflect cost savings anticipated from contract 
negotiations and service reductions for Route 200.  Route 200 is included in the SolTrans 
service contract and is reimbursed by WETA.  Cost savings of approximately $1.25 
million are anticipated for FY 2012. 
 

• Fuel prices have reached record highs and are expected to remain at current levels for FY 
2011-12. Diesel fuel is estimated at $4.25 per gallon.  Fuel consumption is expected to be 
reduced due to the reduction of service on Route 200 and due to greater fuel economy 
with diesel electric hybrid buses being acquired in FY 2010-11.  The new hybrid buses 
will comprise approximately 20 percent of the bus fleet and these buses are estimated to 
consume 50 percent less diesel fuel than standard diesel buses. The greater fuel economy 
will reduce consumption by about 56,600 gallons or ten percent in FY 2011-12.   

 
• Route 200 provides bus service between the ferry terminals in Vallejo and San Francisco.  

The service is included in the operating contract between Vallejo and MV Transit.  The 
contract will be transferred to SolTrans in FY 2011-12 and costs for Route 200 will 
reimbursed by WETA.  WETA plans to significantly reduce Route 200 service.  

 
A multi-year budget projection will be presented to the Board in June. 
 
Recommendation:  
Approve the FY 2012 SolTrans annual operating budget in the amount of $13,000,015, as 
specified in Attachment A. 
 
Attachments: 

A. FY 2012 SolTrans Operating Budget 
B. FY 2012 Budget Assumptions 

50



SolTrans FY 2011-12 Budget Attachment A
Page 1 of 2

Detailed Operating Revenue by Mode

FY 2010/11 FY 2010/11 FY 2011/12
Adopted Revised Proposed

Bus Revenues
Fares $3,071,000 $3,093,000 $3,093,000
FTA Section 5307 Operating Assistance -                   -                   -                       
FTA Section 5307 Preventive Maintenance -                   -                   250,000               
FTA ARRA Preventive Maintenance 1,339,813        1,216,378        -                       
FTA Section 5303 -                   90,000              -                       
FTA Section 5311 Non-Urbanized Area 180,000           179,628           42,503                 
FTA Section 5316 JARC 400,000           523,435           200,000               
FTA Section 5317 NF -                   -                   -                       
STAF Operating Assistance - Vallejo Rev Base -                   -                   609,616               
STAF Operating Assistance - Vallejo Prop 42 -                   -                   -                       
STAF Operating Assistance - Benicia Rev Base 18,245              11,660              -                       
STAF Operating Assistance - Benicia Prop 42 -                   -                   -                       
STAF Operating Assistance - Solano County Pop Base -                   -                   -                       
STAF Lifeline 200,000           325,000           -                       
Regional Measure 2 (RM-2) 1,223,840        1,223,840        1,223,840            
Transportation Development Act (TDA) 3,695,262        3,096,161        5,676,841            
Intercity Funding Agreement 334,340           91,996              95,000                 
Bridge Toll AB 664 PM -                   -                   -                       
Other revenues 30,500              143,000           21,100                 

Bus Revenues Subtotal 10,493,000      9,994,098        11,211,900          
Ferry Revenues

Fares 6,320,000        6,489,000        -                       
FTA Section 5307 Preventive Maintenance 1,000,000        1,000,000        -                       
Bridge Toll 2% Revenue Program 400,000           -                   -                       
Bridge Toll 5% Unrestricted State Funds 1,300,000        1,256,800        -                       
Regional Measure 2 (RM-2) 2,740,500        2,740,500        -                       
One-time Solano County -                   -                   -                       
Supplemental Regional Measure 2 (WETA) for Contingency 2,174,500        2,514,771        -                       
Transportation Development Act (TDA) -                   -                   -                       
Transportation Development Act (TDA) One time -                   -                   -                       
State Transit Assistance - One time -                   -                   -                       
Terminal Leases 19,000              19,000              -                       
Transfer In, General Fund -                   -                   -                       
Labor Day Weekend Service (BATA) -                   -                   -                       
Other revenues 2,000                2,000                -                       

Ferry Revenues Subtotal 13,956,000      14,022,071      -                       
Paratransit Revenues

Fares - Existing 131,000           70,509              71,000                 
FTA Section 5307 10% ADA set-aside 667,000           612,433           667,000               
STAF Operating Assistance -                   -                   -                       
Transportation Development Act (TDA) 763,000           859,467           770,300               

Paratransit Revenues Subtotal 1,561,000        1,542,409        1,508,300            
Taxi Scrip Revenues

Taxi Coupon Sales - Local 141,735           111,599           112,000               
Taxi Coupon Sales - Regional 15,000              -                   15,000                 
Transportation Development Act (TDA) 115,265           154,000           152,815               

Taxi Scrip Revenues Subtotal 272,000           265,599           279,815               

FAREBOX REVENUES 9,678,735        9,764,108        3,276,000            
FUNDING SOURCE REVENUES 16,603,265      16,060,069      9,724,015            

Total, Revenues $26,282,000 $25,824,177 $13,000,015

May 16, 2011

51



SolTrans FY 2011-12 Budget Attachment A
Page 2 of 2

Detailed Operating Expenditure by Mode

FY2010-11 FY2010-11 FY2011/12
Adopted Revised Projected

Bus Expenses
Operating Contract 8,892,000        8,540,959        7,728,000           
Fuel 1,834,000        1,836,836        2,096,000           
Insurance costs 400,000           317,258           400,000              
Security 136,000           136,000           116,600              
Bus Facility Maintenance 62,000             62,000             63,900                
Bus Maintenance 19,000             18,850             19,000                
Utilities 32,000             32,000             33,000                
Printing 13,000             13,000             13,400                
Professional Services 6,000               -                   50,000                
Route 200:  Transfer costs to WETA (1,481,000)       (1,466,000)       (296,000)             
Ferry Ticket Office Transfer to Ferry (177,000)          (177,000)          (182,000)             
General Administration 757,000           738,660           1,170,000           

Bus Expenses Subtotal 10,493,000      10,052,563      11,211,900         
Ferry Expenses

Operating Contract 6,408,000        6,568,316        -                      
Professional Services 128,000           128,000           -                      
Fuel 4,518,000        4,438,755        -                      
Dry Docking 180,000           180,000           -                      
Security 68,000             68,000             -                      
Space Rental & Lease Dockage Fees 74,000             74,000             -                      
Building Maintenance 74,000             74,000             -                      
Utilities 106,000           106,000           -                      
Printing 14,000             14,000             -                      
Route 200 Costs 1,481,000        1,466,000        -                      
Ferry Ticket Office from Bus 177,000           177,000           -                      
General Administration 728,000           728,000           -                      

Ferry Expenses Subtotal 13,956,000      14,022,071      -                      
Paratransit Expenses

Operating Contract - Existing 1,352,000        1,291,764        1,219,000           
Fuel 44,000             48,500             66,000                
Maintenace 45,000             42,841             44,000                
Printing 9,000               9,000               9,300                  
General Administration 111,000           81,023             170,000              

Paratransit Expenses Subtotal 1,561,000        1,473,128        1,508,300           
Taxi Scrip Expenses

Scrips Payments - Local 241,000           236,815           236,815              
Scrips Payments - Regional 15,000             15,000             15,000                
General Administration 16,000             13,000             28,000                

Taxi Scrip Expenses Subtotal 272,000           264,815           279,815              

OPERATING CONTRACT 9,832,723        
OTHER EXPENSES 1,957,783        

Total, Expenses $26,282,000 $25,812,577 $13,000,015

Revenues Less Expenses $0 $11,600 $0

May 16, 2011

52



SolTrans FY 2011-12 Budget
Attachment B

Assumptions

Revenues

Fares Remain flat.  Assumes no fare increase and no change in ridership.
FTA Section 5307 Preventive Maintenance Per MTC estimates.
FTA ARRA Preventive Maintenance ARRA funds were exhausted in FY 2010-11.
FTA Section 5303 Planning funds for SRTP were allocated in FY 2010-11 and will not be 

available in FY 2011-12.
FTA Section 5311 Non-Urbanized Area Based on Regional Apportionment
FTA Section 5316 JARC Per grant award.
STAF Operating Assistance - Revenue Based Includes FY 2010-11 carryover and MTC estimates of FY 2011-12 

available based on the Governor's budget proposal.  
STAF Lifeline No inidication that these funds will continue to be available.
Regional Measure 2 (RM-2) Per MTC estimates.
Transportation Development Act (TDA) Per MTC estimates. See detailed description in staff report.
Intercity Funding Agreement Estimate of net revenues from Intercity Transit Funding Agreement.
Other revenues Includes lease, advertising, and interest income.

Expenditures

Operating Contract Assumes a reduction in bus contract costs due to re-negotiation of rates 
in contract extension or lower overall cost if service is competitively bid. 

Fuel Increased to reflect current pricing. See detailed description in staff 
report.

Insurance costs Remains flat.
Security Based on new contract rates and hours.  
Bus Facility Maintenance Includes a 3% increase.
Bus Maintenance Includes a 3% increase.
Utilities Includes a 3% increase.
Printing Includes a 3% increase.
Professional Services Remain flat.
Route 200:  Transfer costs to WETA Reduced this cost offset to reflect reduction in Rt. 200 service hours.
Ferry Ticket Office Transfer to Ferry Includes a 3% increase.
General Administration General administration costs are allocated to each mode based on the 

pro-rated share of the total budget. All general administration costs are 
assumed to increase by 3% unless otherwise noted.  Salaries and 
benefits are based on the compensation review completed by the HR 
consultant. 5.5 full time equivalent positions are assumed.

53



This page intentionally left blank. 

54



Agenda Item IX.A 
May 19, 2011 

Solano County Transit 
(SolTrans) 

 
DATE:  May 13, 2011 
TO:  SolTrans Board 
FROM: Bernadette Curry, SolTrans Legal Counsel  
RE: Approve Recommendation for Approval of Contract between Cities of Benicia 

and Vallejo and MV Transportation 
 
 
Background: 
As was discussed in the SolTrans Transition Plan, existing transit services are currently provided 
pursuant to three different contracts with MV Transportation (“MV”).  The City of Vallejo has 
two contracts: one providing fixed route services, the other providing RunAbout paratransit 
service.  The City of Benicia has one contract covering all of its transit services.   
 
On February 8, 2011, the Vallejo City Council approved an extension to its fixed route contract 
in order to align the expiration date of all three of the operating contracts to June 30, 2011.  
Assignment of the contracts was anticipated at the time of the formation of SolTrans once the 
SolTrans staff had been hired to oversee the contracts, but due to the timing of formation, has not 
yet been done. 
 
One of the Guiding Principles driving the formation of SolTrans was that “the Benicia Breeze 
and Vallejo Transit services shall be consolidated to streamline, simplify and improve access for 
transit riders through enhanced service coverage.”  A key component of this consolidation is the 
coordination between the three separate contracts.   
 
Discussion:  
Staff has been negotiating with representatives from MV Transportation and believes that a final 
version of the revised agreement between the cities of Benicia and Vallejo and MV will be ready 
to be presented to the respective City Councils in either late May or early June.  Staff is 
recommending that SolTrans Board recommend its support to the respective City Councils for 
the execution of this Agreement which will eventually be assigned to SolTrans when SolTrans 
receives its FTA grantee designation.  
 
Key changes to the proposed contract are the cost savings attributable to the consolidation 
achieved though staffing reductions at all levels and reduction in lease payments for the Bennett 
Street property.  In addition, staff has negotiated a comprehensive maintenance plan which will 
be incorporated into the new contract addressing responsibility for key functions related to 
vehicle and facility servicing.  
 
Fiscal Impact: 
The estimated annual cost of the contract is approximately $8.8 million to be paid from 
Transportation Development Act (“TDA”) funding.  The actual costs are still being refined based 
on insurance quotes and final customer service staffing levels. 
 
Recommendation: 
Authorize SolTrans Legal Counsel to send a recommendation of support to the City Councils of 
Benicia and Vallejo for the approval of a new operating agreement between the cities of Benicia 
and Vallejo and MV Transportation. 

55



This page intentionally left blank. 

56


	(00) SolTrans JPA Board Agenda Only_05-19-11 v2
	(01) SolTrans JPA Board Meeting Minutes_04-21-11
	SOLANO COUNTY TRANSIT (SOLTRANS)
	Draft Board Minutes for Meeting of
	April 21, 2011

	CALL TO ORDER
	MEMBERS
	City of Benicia
	Mike Ioakimedes, Councilmember
	City of Vallejo, Chair
	Osby Davis, Mayor
	City of Vallejo
	Stephanie Gomes, Councilmember
	MTC Representative
	MEMBERS ABSENT:
	City of Vallejo
	Ex-Officio – STA Representative
	STAFF 
	STA HR Consultant
	SolTrans Legal Counsel
	Bernadette Curry 
	STA Executive Director
	Daryl Halls
	STA Project Manager - Consultant
	John Harris
	Public Works Director, City of Vallejo
	Gary Leach
	STA Clerk of the Board
	Johanna Masiclat
	STA Transit Program Manager
	Liz Niedziela
	STA Director of Transit and Rideshare Services
	Elizabeth Richards
	STA Transit Finance Consultant
	Nancy Whelan
	OTHERS PRESENT:
	OPPORTUNITY FOR PUBLIC COMMENT
	COMMENTS FROM STAFF:

	(02) TDA Claim
	Agenda Item VII.B
	May 19, 2011

	(02.a) Attach A Resolution TDA
	ATTACHMENT A

	(02.b) Attach B Rm2 Operating Resolution
	ATTACHMENT B

	(03) Salary-Benefit Rec Agenda May 11
	(04) Board_(ER) SolTrans Sole Source
	Agenda Item VIII.B

	(04.a) Interim Resume
	(04.b) Interim Executive Director
	ATTACHMENT B
	Interim Executive Director
	Solano County Transit (SolTrans)
	UScope of Work

	(05) FTA Compliance Requirements051311
	Agenda Item VIII.C

	(05.a) DBE Policy Attach A
	ATTACHMENT A
	SOLTRANS DBE PROGRAM
	POLICY STATEMENT
	Section 26.1, 26.23  Objectives/Policy Statement
	SUBPART A – GENERAL REQUIREMENTS

	Section 26.1  Objectives
	Section 26.3  Applicability
	Section 26.5  Definitions
	Section 26.7  Non-discrimination Requirements
	Section 26.11 Record Keeping Requirements
	Reporting to DOT: 26.11(b)
	Bidders List: 26.11(c)

	Section 26.13 Federal Financial Assistance Agreement
	Contract Assurance: 26.13b
	SUBPART B - ADMINISTRATIVE REQUIREMENTS

	Section 26.21 DBE Program Updates
	Section 26.23 Policy Statement
	Section 26.27 DBE Financial Institutions
	Section 26.29 Prompt Payment Mechanisms

	Section 26.31 Directory
	Section 26.33 Overconcentration
	Section 26.35 Business Development Programs
	Section 26.37 Monitoring and Enforcement Mechanisms
	SUBPART C – GOALS, GOOD FAITH EFFORTS, AND COUNTING

	Section 26.43 Set-asides or Quotas
	Section 26.45 Overall Goals
	Section 26.49 Transit Vehicle Manufacturers Goals
	Section 26.51(a-c) Estimated Race-Neutral Participation
	Section 26.51(d-g) Contract Goals
	Section 26.53 Good Faith Efforts Procedures
	Demonstration of good faith efforts (26.53(a) & (c))

	Section 26.55 Counting DBE Participation
	SUBPART D – CERTIFICATION STANDARDS

	Section 26.61 – 26.73 Certification Process
	SUBPART E – CERTIFICATION PROCEDURES

	Section 26.81 Unified Certification Programs
	SUBPART F – COMPLIANCE AND ENFORCEMENT

	Section 26.109 Information, Confidentiality, Cooperation
	Monitoring Payments to DBEs
	ATTACHMENTS
	Organizational Chart


	Attachment B
	Section 26.45: Overall Goal Calculation and Methodology (Example)
	1. The current capacity of DBE’s to perform work in your DOT-assisted contracting program, as measured by the volume of work DBEs have performed in recent years.
	2. Evidence from disparity studies conducted anywhere within the jurisdiction to the extent it is not already accounted for in the base figure.
	3. Statistical disparities in the ability of DBEs to get the financing, bonding and insurance required to participate in you program.
	4. Data on employment, self-employment, education, training and union apprenticeship programs, to the extent you can relate it to the opportunities for DBEs to perform in your program.
	Regulations: 49 CFR Part 26



	(05.b) Public Involvement Policy
	(05.c) Drug Free Workplace
	(06) FY 12 Budget 051611
	Agenda Item VIII.D
	May 19, 2011

	(06.a) Attach A and B FINAL SolTrans FY12 Budget
	FOR PRINT - OP REV
	FOR PRINT - OP EXPEND
	Assumptions

	(07) MV contract  (2) revised 5-16-11
	Agenda Item IX.A
	May 19, 2011

	Org Chart 1.pdf
	Slide Number 1




